
 
 

PRIME MINISTER 
 
 
 

Parliament House  CANBERRA  ACT  2600 
Telephone (02) 6277 7700 

www.pm.gov.au 
 

 
 
 
4 July 2020 
 
The Hon Daniel Andrews MP 
Premier of Victoria  
1 Treasury Place 
MELBOURNE  VIC  3002 
 
 
Dear Premier,  
 
I write to thank you for the significant efforts underway to contain the spread of COVID-19 in 
Victoria. 
 
The Commonwealth Government’s focus is to ensure that Victoria has the necessary additional 
support to assist in testing, tracing and isolating cases, as well as bolstering specialist public 
health leadership. 
 
We have always said that Australia will likely experience periodic outbreaks as the COVID-19 
pandemic continues. 
 
I note with concern that the Victorian COVID-19 case numbers have escalated to 108 cases 
today, as part of an increased trend of cases during the past week. This has necessitated a 
further two postcodes being listed as hotspots and new hard lockdowns of nine residential 
public housing buildings in North Melbourne. 
 
I recognise the new measures and support the significant efforts underway. The 
Commonwealth stands ready to provide any support needed on top of the existing measures in 
place, including Australian Defence Force support to support planning and logistics, and 
Commonwealth staff to support clinical efforts, community engagement and contact tracing. 
 
As we have seen with the previous outbreaks in North West Tasmania and Sydney, these types 
of outbreaks can quickly overwhelm local health systems. I reaffirm the offer of 
Commonwealth for on-the-ground support and help in co-ordinating support from other States 
while acknowledging Victoria’s leadership. 
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11 July 2020 
 
The Hon Daniel Andrews MP 
Premier of Victoria 
1 Treasury Place 
MELBOURNE  VIC  3002 
 
 
Dear Premier 
  
Further to our previous correspondence and discussions, I write about additional Australian 
Defence Force (ADF) assistance to support COVID-19 operations in Victoria. 
 
I am advised that there are around 265 ADF personnel in Victoria, with around 200 medical 
specialists supporting COVID-19 clinical testing at 14 sites across Melbourne, around 30 
supporting Victoria Police (VicPol) checkpoints and the remainder supporting planning and 
embedded within Victorian government departments. I further understand around 120 ADF 
personnel are being deployed over the weekend to support logistics and VicPol checkpoints. 
 
The remainder of the ADF personnel you requested in your letter of 7 July 2020 remain 
available to be deployed in Victoria once Victorian officials have finalised their planning and 
preparation activities. Given the escalating COVID-19 outbreak in Victoria, I recommend 
that you again consider further ADF deployment to Melbourne over the coming days to assist 
in the enforcement of public health compliance.  
 
It is critical to the containment of the virus that the now thousands of people in isolation and 
quarantine are carefully tracked by phone and personal visits to ensure compliance (and to 
ensure their welfare). 
 
A model successfully used in previous deployments in other jurisdictions, involves an ADF 
member paired with a police officer in a team of two. This allows the legal enforcement 
powers to be exercised by state and territory police, supported by ADF members. It will 
allow a significant expansion of compliance and welfare activity. 
 
The VicPol/ADF team model could also quickly be deployed to expand the ability to support 
containment rings around Metropolitan Melbourne/Hume Shire. An estimated 1,000 ADF 
could be progressively deployed in this way over the next week, with greater scope beyond. 
 
I am also mindful of the positive and reassuring impact that the presence of the ADF can 
have on communities in times of difficulties, as has already been demonstrated during the 
COVID-19 situation and during the Black Summer bushfires. 






